
 
 

 

1 
Governance & Member Support Officer: Jean Sharp (01277 312655) 

Brentwood Borough Council, Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, Essex CM15 8AY 
01277 312 500   www.brentwood.gov.uk   

 

 
Agenda 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Wednesday, 11 November 2020 at 10.30 am 

Virtual meeting via Microsoft Teams 
 

Membership (Quorum – 3 ) 
 

Cllrs J Cloke, Fryd and Keeble 
 
 

Agenda 
Item 
 

 
Item 
 

 
Wards(s) 
Affected 
 

 
Page No 

Live Broadcast 
 View live broadcast  

Contents 
1. Appointment of Chair 
 
2. Administrative Function 
 
 Members are respectfully reminded that, in determining the matters listed below, 

they are exercising an administrative function with the civil burden of proof, i.e. ‘on 
the balance of probabilities’.  The matter will be determined on the facts before the 
Sub-Committee and the rules of natural justice will apply. 
 

3. Application to Vary the Premises Licence - Dusk, Ongar Road, Pilgrims Hatch, 
Brentwood. CM15 9SS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.brentwood.gov.uk/
https://youtu.be/MOYlrzs2RlM


 
2 
 

 
Jonathan Stephenson 
Chief Executive 
 
Town Hall 
Brentwood, Essex 
03.11.2020 

 
 



 
3 
 

 

Information for Members 
 

Please note the changes in blue apply to remote meetings 
 

 

 
Introduction 

 
 
The Government has enacted The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 
Local Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 no 392 (the 
Regulations) which came into force on the 4 April 2020 and will remain in force until the 7 May 2021. 
 
The Council will hold Committee meetings remotely and enable the public to participate by streaming those 
meetings that are open to the public. 
 
Only those Committee meetings were the public have a right to speak will the facility be available to enable 
them to participate where the technology is not available for them to exercise this right then their 
participation will be by written communication read out at the remote meeting. 
 

 

Substitutes 

The names of substitutes shall be announced at the start of the meeting by the Chair and the substitution shall cease 
at the end of the meeting. 
 
Where substitution is permitted, substitutes for quasi judicial/regulatory committees must be drawn from Members 
who have received training in quasi- judicial/regulatory decision making. If a casual vacancy occurs on a quasi 
judicial/regulatory committee it will not be filled until the nominated member has been trained. 
 
 

 

Rights to Attend and Speak 

 
Any member may remotely attend any Committee to which these rules apply. 

 
Any Members may attend any Committee to which these procedure rules apply. 
 
A Member who is not a member of the Committee may speak at the meeting.  The Member may speak at the Chair’s 
discretion, it being the expectation that a Member will be allowed to speak on a ward matter.   
 
Members requiring further information, or with specific questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer 
at least two working days before the meeting.   
 

Point of Order/ Personal explanation/ Point of Information 

Point of Order 

A member may raise a point of order 
at any time. The Mayor will hear 
them immediately. A point of order 
may only relate to an alleged breach 
of these Procedure Rules or the law. 
The Member must indicate the rule 
or law and the way in which they 
consider it has been broken. The 
ruling of the Mayor on the point of 
order will be final. 

Personal Explanation 

A member may make a personal 
explanation at any time. A personal 
explanation must relate to some 
material part of an earlier speech by 
the member which may appear to 
have been misunderstood in the 
present debate, or outside of the 
meeting.  The ruling of the Mayor on 
the admissibility of a personal 
explanation will be final. 
 

Point of Information or 
clarification 

A point of information or clarification 
must relate to the matter being 
debated. If a Member wishes to raise 
a point of information, he/she must 
first seek the permission of the 
Mayor. The Member must specify the 
nature of the information he/she 
wishes to provide and its importance 
to the current debate, If the Mayor 
gives his/her permission, the 
Member will give the additional 
information succinctly. Points of 
Information or clarification should be 
used in exceptional circumstances 
and should not be used to interrupt 
other speakers or to make a further 
speech when he/she has already 
spoken during the debate. The ruling 
of the Mayor on the admissibility of a 
point of information or clarification 
will be final. 



 

 
4 

 

Information for Members of the Public 

 Access to Information and Meetings 

You have the right to remotely attend all meetings of the Council and Committees.  You also have the right to see 

the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days before the meeting, and minutes once they are 
published.  Dates of the meetings are available at www.brentwood.gov.uk. 

 Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee 

meetings 
 
The Council will be holding remote Committee meetings and will make these accessible to the public 
remotely by being recorded and streamed.  Whilst the Regulations apply the following paragraphs will not 
apply to the meetings of the Council. 
 

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee meetings 
as a means of reporting on its proceedings because it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to 
its local communities. 
 
Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar devices to make recordings, these 
devices must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or committee. 
 
If you wish to record the proceedings of a meeting and have any special requirements or are intending to bring in 
large equipment then please contact the Communications Team before the meeting. 
 
The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has been discussed prior to the 
meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not disrupt proceedings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording and use of social media if any of 
these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting proceedings at the meeting. 
  

Private Session 

Occasionally meetings will need to discuss some of its business in private.  This can only happen on a limited range 
of issues, which are set by law.  When a Committee does so, you will be asked to leave the meeting. 
 
The Chair or Clerk to the Committee will disconnect all persons who should leave the meeting prior to 
continuing there will be a short break to ensure that this has happened.  

 
 

 modern.gov app 

View upcoming public committee documents on your Apple or Android device with the free modern.gov app. 

 Access 

 
The Council will provide remote access for public  
participation by the meeting be accessible.  

 
There is wheelchair access to the meeting venue from 
the Main Entrance.  If you do wish to attend this meeting, 
please contact the clerk should you have specific 
accessibility needs.  There is an induction loop in the 
meeting room.   

 Evacuation Procedures 

 
This procedure does not apply whilst using remote 
meetings  
 

Evacuate the building using the nearest available exit 
and congregate at the assembly point in the Car Park. 

https://brentwoodwebdav.moderngov.co.uk/f8614670-0560-4d7c-a605-98a1b7c4a116-066-427a5f39-5a686c62-65376d6c/AgendaDocs/7/3/5/A00001537/$$Agenda.doc#http://www.brentwood.gov.uk
http://www.moderngov.co.uk/


 
11 November 2020 
 
Licensing Sub-committee 
 
Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing in respect of an  
Application to Vary a Premises Licence – Licensing Act 2003 
 
DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 
 

 
 

Report of:  Dave Leonard – Licensing Officer  
 

Wards Affected: Pilgrims Hatch     
 

This report is:  Public 
 

1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 An application has been received by Sisu Enterprises Ltd. to vary the premises 

licence of Dusk, Ongar Road, Pilgrims Hatch, CM15 9SS. They seek to 

remove two conditions attached to the current, add the supply of alcohol for 

consumption on the premises and amend their opening hours. Sixteen relevant 

representations have been received. Members are requested to determine the 

application having regard to the operating schedule, the representations 

received, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the four Licensing 

objectives. 

 

 

2. Recommendation(s) 

 

2.1 That the Sub Committee: 

 

Considers this report and appendices together with any oral submissions at the 

hearing and determines the application in line with the options open to the sub-

committee under the Licensing Act 2003: However, the available options are: 

 

i) To grant the application in full on the terms and conditions contained 

in the operating schedule along with any applicable mandatory 

conditions; 

ii) To grant the application, modified to such extent as considered 

appropriate in order to satisfy any relevant representations and to 

promote the licensing objectives; or 

iii) To refuse the application in whole or in part 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 
3. Introduction and Background 

 
3.1 An authorisation is required in respect of any premises where it is intended to 

conduct one or more of the four licensable activities, these being: 

 

 Sale of alcohol 

 Supply of alcohol (in respect of a club) 

 Regulated Entertainment 

 Provision of Late-Night Refreshment 

 

3.2 An appropriate authorisation is either, a premises licence, a club premises 

certificate or a Temporary Event Notice. 

 

3.3 Licence holders are required, when offering any licensable activity, to ensure 

that they promote the licensing objectives at all times. The operating schedule 

of the application contains details of the activities applied for and the control 

measures that the applicant will have in place in order to promote these 

objectives. Such measures will, where appropriate, be converted into 

enforceable conditions on any licence issued. 

 

3.4 The four licensing objectives are; 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 

 Prevention of public nuisance 

 Public safety 

 Protection of children from harm 

                  
3.5      Any representation must be able to demonstrate that on the balance of    

probability the application in its current form will fail to adequately promote one 
or more of the licensing objectives. No other matters may be considered. 

 

4. The Application 

 
4.1 This application was received on 3rd July 2020 from Mr Kaizad Cassady on 

behalf of Sisu Enterprises Ltd. in respect of Dusk, Ongar Road, Pilgrims 

Hatch, CM15 9SS. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

4.2 This premise is a multi-cuisine, fine dining restaurant and lounge, with function 

room. The current premises licence together with a set of OS Street Maps and 

images to better identify the location are attached at Appendix 2.  

Page 6



4.3 The applicant initially sought to remove two conditions* attached to Annex 3 of 

the current premises licence granted following a Licensing Sub-Committee 

hearing on 1 October 2019, namely; (*please see paras 4.9-4.11) 

 There should be a second interior door at the front entrance (3/1), and 

 Noise limiters shall be installed in the outside space in discussion and 

agreement of the Licensing Department of the Council (3/7) 

 

Additionally, the applicant seeks the provision to supply alcohol for consumption 

on the premises from;  

Sunday-Thursday 1200hrs-2330hrs & Friday & Saturday 1200hrs-0130hrs  

 

The hours of opening have also been amended to; 

Sunday-Thursday 1200hrs-0000hrs & Friday & Saturday 1200hrs-0200hrs  

 
4.4 One valid representation has been received from the Responsible Authorities.  

 

4.5 Mr David Carter, Environmental Health manager at Brentwood Borough Council 

has concerns relating to noise nuisance. He maintains that, since Dusk’s 

opening, there has been a substantial increase in the number of complaints 

received, largely as a result of the use of the lounge area, which as it is 

designed to comply with the smoking legislation is required to be at least 50% 

open, which significantly reduces any noise attenuation from the structure and, 

effectively, operates as an outside area, with associated noise from customers 

and any amplified music played in the area. Mr. Carter’s representation is 

attached at Appendix 3. 

 

4.6 There have been 15 representations against the application received from 

Other Persons. The concerns raised by local residents generally relate to the 

noise nuisance being caused by the playing of late-night music in the outdoor 

lounge/smoking area and the subsequent dispersal of patrons in an otherwise 

quiet, semi-rural location. A copy of the summarised & redacted representations 

has been attached at Appendix 4. 

 

4.7 Matters recorded in the Operating Schedule (Section O of the application form) 

will become conditions on the licence if this application is granted, unless 

modified by this Committee. In this instance, Mr Shakil Islam, one of the 

directors of Sisu Enterprises Ltd., has submitted an accompanying statement 

advising what steps will be taken to address and counter the conditions he is 

seeking to remove from the licence, this will become the following conditions: 

 

Page 7



 Thick curtains and thick pergola glass shall be installed at the front door 

to ensure a significant reduction in noise escape beyond the premises 

 No regulated entertainment will be conducted outside the premises. 

Music will be played only within the premises. 

 

4.8 In respect of the application seeking the provision to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises, the applicant has not yet nominated a 
designated premises supervisor. If granted, the mandatory condition applies 
No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence  
a) At a time when there is no designated supervisor in respect of it or,              

b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.      
 

4.9 This application was initially heard by the Licensing Sub-Committee on                  
7 September 2020 but was adjourned to 28 September 2020 when the 
applicant introduced a supplementary supporting document with less than 5 
working days’ notice. The document, a noise impact assessment sound report, 
contained very technical information and it was considered necessary that all 
parties should be given a sufficient period to scrutinise the document. This 
report by Venta Acoustics has been attached at Appendix 1A. 
 

4.10 On 10 September 2020, Sisu Enterprises Ltd. submitted a further application for 
a minor variation to amend the premises plan to include a second interior door 
at the front entrance. The purpose of this was to enable the licence holder to 
now comply with Annex 3 condition 1 of the current licence, thus obviating the 
need to have the condition removed from this application and, perhaps, allaying 
some of the concerns raised by those making representation. There were no 
representations against the minor variation and an amended licence with the 
updated premises plan was issued on 1 October 2020. This premises licence is 
attached at Appendix 2.  

 

4.11 Consequently, a second supplementary statement from Mr Shakil Islam dated 
20 September 2020 was submitted amending this application and clarifying that 
he no longer wishes the removal of Annex 3 conditions 1 & 7 from the licence 
and the application is now purely to include the provision to supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises and to extend the hours of opening as at para 4.3 
This statement is attached at Appendix 1A.                                                                                                                                                                    

 
5. Reasons for Recommendation  

 
5.1 These are the options available to the Sub-Committee under the Licensing Act 

2003. 
 
 

Page 8



6. Consultation 

 

6.1 The application has been consulted on in accordance with the requirements of 

the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

6.2 Officers from the Licensing Authority have made checks on the display of public 

notices and in a local newspaper and are satisfied that these requirements have 

been met. 

 
7. Statement of Licensing Policy 

 
The following Brentwood Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-
2021 control measures relating to the prevention of public nuisance state: 
 

          22.2 The Licensing Authority intends to interpret “public nuisance” in its widest 
sense, and takes it to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-
social behaviour, where these matters impact on those living, working or 
otherwise engaged in normal activity in an area. 

22.5 Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule that 

suitable and sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented 

and maintained to prevent public nuisance, relevant to the individual style and 

characteristics of their premises and events. 

 

 

8. Relevant Sections of the Secretary of State’s Guidance 

 

8.1 No specific additional issues arise from this application in relation to the Section 

182 Guidance when determining applications. 

 
 
9. Legal Considerations 

 

9.1 Conditions may be attached to the grant of any licence, the hours or activities may 

be amended as appropriate, or in some cases the application may be refused. 

However, any action taken must be appropriate and relevant to promotion of the 

licensing objectives having considered the full details of the application and 

representations including testimony from any interested party present at the 

hearing. 

 

9.2 The justification behind any decision to grant or refuse a licence application or the 

attachment of conditions, or variation of terms applied for must be recorded and 

given to the applicant and any person that has made representation. 

Page 9



 

9.3 There is a right of appeal to Magistrates Court by any person or party aggrieved 

by any decision made by the Sub-Committee. 

 
 
Appendices to this report 

 

 Appendix 1 - Application Form & Supporting Statement 

 Appendix 1A – Noise Impact Assessment Sound Report & 

Supplementary Statement Clarifying Amended Application 

 Appendix 2 - OS Street Plans & Images 

 Appendix 3 - Representation from Responsible Authority  

Mr David Carter - Environmental Health Manager  

 Appendix 4 - Representations from Other Parties 

 

 
Report Author Contact Details: 
 
Name: Dave Leonard 
Telephone: 01277 312523 
E-mail: dave.leonard@brentwood.gov.uk  

Page 10



 

 

 

 

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 
APPLICATION FORM 

 

Application to Vary a Premises Licence 

(Sisu Enterprises Ltd. T/A DUSK) 

 

Supporting Statement of Mr Shakil Islam 

(Director, Sisu Enterprises Ltd.) 

Page 11

Appendix A



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



 

 

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 

 

APPENDIX 1A 
APPLICATION FORM 

Supplementary Report 

 

Email from Agent Kaizad Cassady  

dated 4 September 2020 

Submitting Attached  

Noise Impact Assessment Sound Report 

(Venta Acoustics) 

 

Further Statement of Mr Shakil Islam  

dated 20 September 2020 

Clarifying Amended Application for  

Sale of Alcohol & Extended Opening Hours only 

Page 35

Appendix B



Page 36



Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

 

Report VA2956.200827.NIA 

 

Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood 

 

 

Noise Impact Assessment 
 

 

01 September 2020 

Dusk 

Ongar Road 

Brentwood 

CM15 9SS 
 

Page 38



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood     

Contents 

 

1. Introduction ..................................................................................................... 1 

2. Premises  Description ....................................................................................... 1 

3. Design Criterion and Assessment Methodology ............................................... 1 

3.1 Brentwood Borough Council Requirements ................................................................. 1 

3.2 BS8233:2014 ............................................................................................................... 2 

4. Noise Survey and Music Investigations............................................................. 2 

4.1 Survey Procedure ........................................................................................................ 2 

4.2 Sound Insulation/Propagation Tests ............................................................................ 2 

4.3 Equipment .................................................................................................................. 3 

5. Results ............................................................................................................. 3 

5.1 Environmental Noise Survey ........................................................................................ 3 

5.2 Sound Propagation ...................................................................................................... 3 

6. Discussion ........................................................................................................ 4 

7. Mitigation Measures ........................................................................................ 4 

7.1 Music Noise Limiter ..................................................................................................... 4 

7.2 Other Measures .......................................................................................................... 4 

8. Noise Management Plan .................................................................................. 5 

8.1 Potential Noise Sources ............................................................................................... 5 

8.2 Management Controls ................................................................................................. 5 

8.2.1 Noise Limiter ........................................................................................................... 5 

8.2.2 External Noise Management .................................................................................... 6 

8.3 Neighbour Relations .................................................................................................... 6 

8.3.1 Complaints Procedure ............................................................................................. 6 

9. Conclusion ....................................................................................................... 7 

 

Attachments 

VA2956/SP1 Indicative Site Plan 

VA2956/TH1-TH3 Environmental Noise Time Histories 

  

Appendix A Acoustic Terminology 

Appendix B Sample Complaint Form 

 

Page 39



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 1 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

1. Introduction 

Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood are undertaking a license application for the premises, and noise has 

been highlighted as a concern by Brentwood Borough Council’s Environmental Health Department 

which needs addressing as part of application.  

Venta Acoustics has been commissioned by Dusk to undertake an assessment of the noise impact 

of the use as part of the licensing application.  

An environmental noise survey has been undertaken to determine the background noise levels at 

the most affected noise sensitive receptors, as well as noise breakout and on site noise propagation 

investigations. These levels are used to undertake an assessment of the likely impact with reference 

to the planning of Brentwood Borough Council.  

2. Premises  Description 

As illustrated on attached site plan VA2956/SP1, the premises is located to the west of Bentley Golf 

Club. The premises consists of an internal lounge area, restaurant, and weather covered external 

seating area to the west of the building. Customers enter and leave the site through a doorway on 

the north of the external area, directly on to the car park.  

The external seating area is open to the dry bar area by means of two large openings, and has hit 

and miss fencing enclosing it from approximately 1m above ground. As the area is used as a Shisha 

bar, it is by design well ventilated and has many gaps to the extents. 

The surrounding area is relatively flat, with Kumra Lodge approximately 100m to the south-west, 

and other residences to the north off Frog Street approximately 160m away.  

The most affected noise sensitive receiver is expected to be Kumra Lodge, which has a direct line of 

sight to the external seating area. 

The premises currently operates between 4pm and midnight on weekdays, and 4pm until 1am on 

Fridays and Saturdays.  There is a DJ on Friday and Saturday evenings in the bar area, which is open 

to the external Shisha area.  

3. Design Criterion and Assessment Methodology 

3.1 Brentwood Borough Council Requirements 

Prior to undertaking the survey Venta Acoustics discussed the premises and requirements with 

David Carter, Environmental Health Officer at Brentwood Borough Council. Although it was not 

possible to set a definitive noise limit at that point, as the noise climate in the area had not been 

evaluated, the discussion highlighted that the main area of concern was music and patron noise 

from the external area, and open sided bar.  

Page 40



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 2 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

3.2 BS8233:2014  

BS8233 Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings provides guidance as to 

suitable internal noise levels for different areas within residential buildings, although it should be 

noted that this is mainly considering ‘anonymous’ noise, such as a distant road. However, it has 

been included here for comparative purposes.  

The relevant section of the standard is shown below in Table 3.1. 

Activity Location 07:00 to 23:00 23:00 to 07:00 

Resting Living Room 35 dB LAeq, 16 hour - 

Dining Dining Room 40 dB LAeq, 16 hour - 

Sleeping (daytime resting) Bedroom 35 dB LAeq, 16 hour 30 dB LAeq, 8 hour 

Table 3.1 - Excerpt from BS8233: 2014 [dB ref. 20µPa] 

4. Noise Survey and Music Investigations 

4.1 Survey Procedure 

In order to establish the existing background noise levels at the site, a noise survey was carried out 

between Friday 31st July and Monday 3rd August 2020 at the location shown in site plan VA2956/SP1. 

This location was chosen to be representative of the ambient and background noise level at the 

most affected noise sensitive receivers. 

Continuous 5-minute samples of the LAeq, LAmax, LA10 and LA90 sound pressure levels were undertaken 

at the measurement location. 

The weather during the survey period was hot and dry with light winds. The background noise data 

is not considered to have been compromised by these conditions.   

Measurements were made generally in accordance with ISO 1996 2:2017 Acoustics - Description, 

measurement and assessment of environmental noise – Part 2: Determination of sound pressure 

levels. 

4.2 Sound Insulation/Propagation Tests 

During the site visit, the house music system was demonstrated, which plays through ceiling 

mounted speakers in the bar area, and two monitor speakers in the external Shisha area. It is 

understood that when the DJ plays, they also have a monitor speaker on the DJ booth. It is 

understood that the DJ plays all music through the house system. 

A noise limiter has been fitted to the system, although at the time of the site visit, the system had 

not been set up with the feedback microphone.  

 

Page 41



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 3 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

4.3 Equipment 

The following equipment was used in the course of the survey: 

Manufacturer Model Type Serial No 
Calibration 

Certificate No. Date 

NTi Class 1 Integrating SLM XL2 A2A-15993-E0 FL-19-122 14/3/19 

Larson Davis calibrator CAL200 13069 UCRT20/1562 26/6/20 

Table 4.1 – Equipment used for the tests 

The calibration of the sound level meter was verified before and after use with no significant 

calibration drift observed. 

5. Results 

5.1 Environmental Noise Survey 

The measured sound levels are shown as time-history plots on the attached charts VA2956/TH1-3. 

The background noise level is determined by local traffic.  

Noise levels in the area become very quiet, with the noise levels at 1am on the Friday and Saturday, 

just after the premises closed being summarised in Table 5.1, along with the normal day and night-

time noise levels. 

Monitoring Period Typical1 LA90,5min LAeq, T 

07:00 – 23:00 hours 40 dB 69 dB 

23:00 – 07:00 hours 26 dB 62 dB 

01:00 27 dB 58 dB 

Table 5.1 – Ambient and typical background noise levels [dB ref. 20 µPa] 
1 The typical LA90 value is taken as the 10th percentile of all LA90 values measured during the relevant period. 

5.2 Sound Propagation 

Music investigations were undertaken to ascertain the sound insulation/breakout from the bar and 

shisha area.  

The music was set at around LAeq 78dB (LAmax 82dB) in the bar, the music in the external area was 

approximately 5dB lower, which was reported by site to be the upper level at which music is played 

on the premises.  

An exercise was then undertaken at a range of distances from the seating area towards Kumra 

Lodge, with the music not being audible at a distance of around 50m, although this was due to 

masking from the daytime road traffic, which would be at a much lower level late at night.  

 

Page 42



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 4 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

6. Discussion 

Inspection of the time history data and the associated audio files suggests that noise from patrons 

and, generally at a lower level, music, is audible opposite the nearest receiver.  

Although no limiter was in place during the survey, the music did not sound especially bass heavy, 

and the patron noise was generally a quiet babble, rather than raised voices and shouting.  

However, due to the late closing time on the weekend, it is likely that the Council will want to see 

the noise limiter set up, likely in a joint exercise, with the Council and either acoustician or limiter 

technician available to agree a suitable level at which to set the unit, and then lock it off so it cannot 

be changed.  

The music noise level experienced at the premises during the site test was slightly louder than 

ambient, but not especially loud, and so would be fitting with the reported use as a restaurant and 

lounge venue, rather than a nightclub.  

Due to the very low background noise levels in the area, it is considered unlikely that even with a 

noise limiter in place, the venue would be able to remain inaudible at all times, but it should be 

possible to control noise to a degree which would be unlikely to cause negative impact on nearby 

residents.  

Even considering this, good management of the such premises is always important in controlling 

impacts on the surrounding dwellings. 

7. Mitigation Measures 

7.1 Music Noise Limiter 

It is recommended that a joint exercise is undertaken with the Council’s Environmental Health team, 

where noise levels can be set with a listener at the nearby receiver. This can be used to set an agreed 

noise limit, and also fine tune the spectral adaptation of the limit to ensure that bass noise, or other 

frequencies are suitably controlled at source. 

7.2 Other Measures 

It is also recommended that a noise management plan is implemented to create a collaborative 

process through which the operator, the Local Authority and residents can liaise to control noise 

impact to acceptable levels. 

 

 

 

Page 43



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 5 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

8. Noise Management Plan 

The following noise management plan includes many measures that would be recommended for 

adoption by management of the premises. This plan address both music noise and noise from 

patrons. These measures are intended to minimise the noise impact on the neighbours. 

8.1 Potential Noise Sources 

The management understand that the identification and recognition of potential causes of 

disturbance assists greatly in planning to avoid disturbances to the surroundings. 

The following noise sources have been identified in relation to the proposed operation of the 

premises: 

 Music noise; 

 Noise from Patrons inside and outside the building (shouting, laughing, etc.); 

 Patrons leaving the bar throughout and at the end of the night, including taxis 

8.2 Management Controls   

The responsibility for the management controls will be assumed by the manager. Other members 

of staff may assume the role in the future following suitable training. Where the venue is hired out, 

this responsibility will be shared with the event organisers as will be included in the contract for the 

hire of the venue. 

A culture of neighbourly consideration will be encouraged amongst patrons through the use of signs 

and polite reminders from staff. 

Patrons are expected to access and leave the premises via the carpark. Signs will be installed 

reminding patrons not to have loud music in cars and keep engine noise low, and smokers of the 

amenity of neighbours.  

Taxis will be encouraged to turn off their engines while waiting and not sound their horns, with a 

member of staff liaising with the driver to fetch the patron if necessary.  

8.2.1 Noise Limiter 

As previously highlighted, it is recommended that a sound limiter system be installed to control the 

upper limits for noise emissions from site. Any music played in the venue would have to be through 

this system.  

It is recommended that, although a guide figure has been identified, the limit for noise levels would 

be set through a joint exercise with the Council and the neighbouring dwellings where music in the 

Page 44



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 6 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

premises is adjusted until an agreeable level is achieved at, or preferably in, the neighbouring 

dwellings. The limiter would then be set with this level as the maximum permitted level.  

8.2.2 External Noise Management 

A culture of neighbourly consideration will be encouraged amongst guests through the use of signs 

prominently displayed by the door and polite reminders from staff.  

Signs should be in place reminding guests of the proximity of neighbours and encouraging them to 

keep their voices down.  

8.3 Neighbour Relations 

The management will endeavour to maintain a friendly, open and informative relationship with the 

nearby residents to allow concerns to be raised and addressed without hostility. Residents will be 

made aware of planned events with a reasonable notice period and concerns regarding these will 

be noted and acted upon.  

8.3.1 Complaints Procedure 

A phone number and email address will be provided to nearby residents to allow efficient 

notification of the premises if noise levels are causing a disturbance. Clear instructions would be 

given to those likely to answer on these procedures for handling complaints. 

A complaint action procedure will be produced and made available to staff who will be instructed 

to follow it on receiving a complaint. This procedure would include checking and adjusting the music 

volume and supervising patrons outside the premises. 

A timed and dated log will be kept in the office of all complaints, including actions taken and 

responses given.  Other information recorded in the complaints log will include the approximate 

number of guests and staff present at the time of the complaint, and any specific activities or 

conditions which were noteworthy at the time.  A sample complaint log sheet is attached at 

Appendix B. Any other notes or email communications should be copied and a record kept in the 

complaint log folder. 

All complaints will be addressed promptly, with a response/explanation as well as any future actions 

or improvements that can be implemented. 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 VA2956.200827.NIA 31 August 2020 

VA2956  Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood   Page 7 of 7 

Noise Impact Assessment 

9. Conclusion 

A baseline noise survey has been undertaken by Venta Acoustics to establish the background noise 

climate in the locality of Dusk, Ongar Road, Brentwood, as well as an assessment of music noise 

propagation to the nearest receiver. 

Additional recommendations to minimise operational noise have also been provided, including a 

joint exercise to set the noise limiter.  

A noise management plan has been proposed to minimise the impact of operation on the 

surrounding residents and a procedure for efficiently dealing with complaints has been suggested. 

 

 

Jamie Duncan MIOA 

Page 46



 
0

1
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
2

0
 

In
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
 S

it
e

 P
la

n
  

V
A

2
9

5
6

/S
P

1
 D

u
sk

, 
O

n
g

a
r 

R
o

a
d

, 
B

re
n

tw
o

o
d

  

             

 

      

N
o

is
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 

M
o

st
 A

ff
e

ct
e

d
 R

e
ce

iv
e

r 

A
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

 e
xt

e
n

t 
o

f 
D

u
sk

 

Page 47



0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

F
ri

 3
1

 J
u

l 
2

0
S

a
t 

0
1

 A
u

g
 2

0

Sound Pressure Level dB(A)

LA
e

q
LA

F
M

a
x

LA
1

0
LA

9
0

D
u

sk
, 

O
n

g
a

r 
R

o
a

d
, 

B
re

n
tw

o
o

d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
N

o
is

e
 T

im
e

 H
is

to
ry

: 
1

F
ig

u
re

 V
A

2
9

5
6

/T
H

1

Page 48



0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

S
a

t 
0

1
 A

u
g

 2
0

S
u

n
 0

2
 A

u
g

 2
0

Sound Pressure Level dB(A)

LA
e

q
LA

F
M

a
x

LA
1

0
LA

9
0

D
u

sk
, 

O
n

g
a

r 
R

o
a

d
, 

B
re

n
tw

o
o

d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
N

o
is

e
 T

im
e

 H
is

to
ry

: 
2

F
ig

u
re

 V
A

2
9

5
6

/T
H

2

Page 49



0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

S
u

n
 0

2
 A

u
g

 2
0

M
o

n
 0

3
 A

u
g

 2
0

Sound Pressure Level dB(A)

LA
e

q
LA

F
M

a
x

LA
1

0
LA

9
0

D
u

sk
, 

O
n

g
a

r 
R

o
a

d
, 

B
re

n
tw

o
o

d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
N

o
is

e
 T

im
e

 H
is

to
ry

: 
3

F
ig

u
re

 V
A

2
9

5
6

/T
H

3

Page 50



 

APPENDIX A 

Acoustic Terminology & Human Response to Broadband Sound 

1.1 Acoustic Terminology 

The human impact of sounds is dependent upon many complex interrelated factors such as 

‘loudness’, its frequency (or pitch) and variation in level. In order to have some objective measure 

of the annoyance, scales have been derived to allow for these subjective factors. 

Sound 
Vibrations propagating through a medium (air, water, etc.) that are detectable by the auditory 

system. 

Noise Sound that is unwanted by or disturbing to the perceiver. 

Frequency 

The rate per second of vibration constituting a wave, measured in Hertz (Hz), where 1Hz = 1 

vibration cycle per second.  The human hearing can generally detect sound having frequencies in 

the range 20Hz to 20kHz.  Frequency corresponds to the perception of ‘pitch’, with low 

frequencies producing low ‘notes’ and higher frequencies producing high ‘notes’.  

dB(A): 

Human hearing is more susceptible to mid-frequency sounds than those at high and low 

frequencies. To take account of this in measurements and predictions, the ‘A' weighting scale is 

used so that the level of sound corresponds roughly to the level as it is typically discerned by 

humans.  The measured or calculated ‘A' weighted sound level is designated as dB(A) or LA. 

Leq : 

A notional steady sound level which, over a stated period of time, would contain the same 

amount of acoustical energy as the actual, fluctuating sound measured over that period (e.g. 8 

hour, 1 hour, etc). 

The concept of Leq (equivalent continuous sound level) has primarily been used in assessing noise 

from industry, although its use is becoming more widespread in defining many other types of 

sounds, such as from amplified music and environmental sources such as aircraft and 

construction. 

Because Leq is effectively a summation of a number of events, it does not in itself limit the 

magnitude of any individual event, and this is frequently used in conjunction with an absolute 

sound limit. 

L10 & L90 : 

Statistical Ln indices are used to describe the level and the degree of fluctuation of non-steady 

sound.  The term refers to the level exceeded for n% of the time. Hence, L10 is the level exceeded 

for 10% of the time and as such can be regarded as a typical maximum level. Similarly, L90 is the 

typical minimum level and is often used to describe background noise. 

It is common practice to use the L10 index to describe noise from traffic as, being a high average, it 

takes into account the increased annoyance that results from the non-steady nature of traffic 

flow. 

Lmax : 

The maximum sound pressure level recorded over a given period. Lmax is sometimes used in 

assessing environmental noise, where occasional loud events occur which might not be adequately 

represented by a time-averaged Leq value. 

1.2 Octave Band Frequencies 

In order to determine the way in which the energy of sound is distributed across the frequency 

range, the International Standards Organisation has agreed on "preferred" bands of frequency for 

sound measurement and analysis. The widest and most commonly used band for frequency 

measurement and analysis is the Octave Band. In these bands, the upper frequency limit is twice 

the lower frequency limit, with the band being described by its "centre frequency" which is the 

average (geometric mean) of the upper and lower limits, e.g. 250 Hz octave band extends from 176 

Hz to 353 Hz. The most commonly used octave bands are: 

Octave Band Centre Frequency Hz 63 125 250 500 1000 2000 4000 8000 

         

         

Page 51



 

APPENDIX A 

Acoustic Terminology & Human Response to Broadband Sound 

1.3 Human Perception of Broadband Noise  

Because of the logarithmic nature of the decibel scale, it should be borne in mind that sound levels 

in dB(A) do not have a simple linear relationship. For example, 100dB(A) sound level is not twice as 

loud as 50dB(A). It has been found experimentally that changes in the average level of fluctuating 

sound, such as from traffic, need to be of the order of 3dB before becoming definitely perceptible 

to the human ear. Data from other experiments have indicated that a change in sound level of 10dB 

is perceived by the average listener as a doubling or halving of loudness. Using this information, a 

guide to the subjective interpretation of changes in environmental sound level can be given. 

Change in Sound Level 

dB 
Subjective Impression Human Response 

0 to 2 Imperceptible change in loudness Marginal 

3 to 5 Perceptible change in loudness Noticeable 

6 to 10 Up to a doubling or halving of loudness Significant 

11 to 15 More than a doubling or halving of loudness Substantial 

16 to 20 Up to a quadrupling or quartering of loudness Substantial 

21 or more More than a quadrupling or quartering of loudness Very Substantial 

 

Page 52



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

 

S
a

m
p

le
 N

o
is

e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
t 

Lo
g

 S
h

e
e

t 

D
a

te
 

T
im

e
 

S
ta

ff
 

N
a

m
e

 

N
o

. 
o

f 
S

ta
ff

 &
 

P
a

tr
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

t 
D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 D
e

ta
il

s1
 

N
a

m
e

 
A

d
d

re
ss

 
P

h
o

n
e

/e
m

a
il

 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
1

 
D

u
ra

ti
o

n
 

S
o

lu
ti

o
n

?
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
1
 A

tt
a

ch
 n

o
te

d
 a

n
d

 e
m

a
il

 c
o

rr
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ce
 a

s 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

Page 53



P
age 54



 

 

 

 

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 
Premises Licence 1 October 2020 

OS Maps & Images 

 

Page 55

Appendix C



 
 

Premises Licence 
 

Premises Licence Number 
 
Application Number 
 
Date of Issue 

PRM_0569 
 
20/00114/LAMIN 
 

1 October 2020 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post Town, Post Code 
 

Dusk 
Ongar Road 
Pilgrims Hatch 
Essex CM15 9SS 
 
Telephone number 

01277 424987 
  

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence  
 

Performance of Dance 
Exhibition of a film 
Performance of Live music 
Playing of Recorded music 
Other Entertainment falling within Act 
Provision of Late Night Refreshments 
 
 

Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  

Performance of Dance 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Exhibition of a film 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00  

Page 56



 
 

Performance of Live music 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Playing of Recorded music 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 01:30 
Saturday 16:00  - 01:30 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Other Entertainment falling within Act 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 01:30 
Saturday 16:00  - 01:30 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Provision of Late Night Refreshments 
  
Monday 23:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 23:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 23:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 23:00  - 00:00 
Friday 23:00  - 01:30 
Saturday 23:00  - 01:30 
Sunday 23:00  - 00:00  
 

 

 

The opening hours of the premises 

 
            Monday                   16:00  - 00:00 
            Tuesday                   16:00  - 00:00 
            Wednesday                   16:00  - 00:00 
            Thursday                   16:00  - 00:00 
            Friday                   16:00  - 02:00 
            Saturday                   16:00  - 02:00 
            Sunday                   13:00  - 00:00 
 
 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies   

Not Applicable 

 
Page 57



 
 

Part 2 
 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence 

 

Sisu Enterprises Limited 
County Service Station 
Essex Gardens 
Hornchurch 
RM11 3EH 
 
Email Address info@duskbrentwood.co.uk 
 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 

 
Company Number 11278657  
 
 

 
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 
 

Not Applicable 
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 

Not Applicable 
 

Page 58



 
 

 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
  
  

  
 1 The admission of children under the age of 18 to film exhibitions permitted 

under the terms of this licence shall be restricted in accordance with any 
recommendations made 

  
 a) By the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) where the film has 

been classified by that Board, or 
  
 b) By the Licensing Authority where no classification certificate has been 

granted by the BBFC, or, where the licensing authority has notified the 
licence holder that section 20 (3) (b) (74 (3)9b) for clubs) of the Licensing 
Act 2003 applies to the film. 

 
 2 Only individuals licensed by the Security Industry Authority may be used at 

the premises to guard against: 
 a) Unauthorised access or occupation (eg through door supervision), or 
 b) Outbreaks of disorder, or 
 c) Damage 
 

  
 

Page 59



 
 

 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
 
                   

 1 The premises shall have installed and maintain a closed circuit television 
surveillance (CCTV) system which at all times complies with the below 
requirements:   

  
i. CCTV will be provided in the form a recordable system, capable of 

providing pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions particularly 
facial recognition; 

ii. CCTV cameras shall cover all entrances and exits; 
iii.  Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time 

and date stamped, recordings must be kept in good working order and kept 
for a minimum period of 31 days; 

  
Upon the reasonable request of the police or licensing authority staff, within 
48 hours viewable copies of recordings will be provided. 

 
 2 Signs must be displayed at all entrances advising customers that CCTV is 

operating at the premises and shall be a minimum size of 200 x 148 mm and 
clearly legible at all times when the premises conducts licensable activities. 

 
 3 An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made immediately available 

to police or licensing authority staff upon reasonable request. 
  
 The log must be completed as soon as is possible and within any case within 

4 hours of the occurrence and shall record the following:  
  
 (a) all crimes reported to the venue  
 (b) all ejections of patrons  
 (c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
 (d) any incidents of disorder  
 (e) all seizures of drugs, offensive weapons or alcohol  
 (f) any faults in a CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 

mandated as a condition of the licence 
  
 The incident log shall either be electronic or maintained in a bound document 

with individually numbered pages and be retained for at least 12 months from 
the date of the last entry. 

 
 4 Where SIA licensed door supervisors are used at the premises a record shall 

be maintained (on the premises) which is legible and details:  
  

i. The day and date when door supervisors were deployed; 
 ii. The name and SIA registration number of each door supervisor on duty at 
the premises; and 
 iii. The start and finish time of each door supervisor's worked duty period. 

  
 This record shall be retained on the premises for 31 days and be immediately 

provided to police or licensing authority staff upon reasonable request. 
 

Page 60



 
 

 

 5 Where SIA licensed door supervisors are employed at the premises (either 
directly or via a third party) a check of the current validity of each door 
supervisor's licence shall be conducted via the SIA website at the 
commencement of employment at the premises and monthly thereafter and 
recorded in a log. 

  
 This log shall be retained for at least 6 months after the last recorded check 

and be immediately provided to police or licensing authority staff upon 
reasonable request. 

 
 6 At all times drinks must only be served in polycarbonate/plastic and/or 

toughened glass containers. 
 
 7 Clear and legible notices must be prominently displayed at all exits 

requesting customers to respect local residents and leave the area quietly.  
  
 These signs shall be a minimum size of 200mm x 148 mm. 
 8 A Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated, whereby any person who appears 

to be under the age of 25 years of age is required to produce on request an 
item which meets the mandatory age verification requirement and is either a:  

 o Proof of age card bearing the PASS Hologram; 
 o Photocard driving licence;  
 o Passport; or 
 Ministry of Defence Identity Card. 
 
 9 The premises shall clearly display signs at the each point of sale and in areas 

where alcohol is displayed advising customers that a 'Challenge 25' policy is 
in force.   

  
 At the point of sale, such signs shall be a minimum size of 200mm x 148mm. 
 
10 All staff shall have received training in relation to the protection of children 

from harm (including under-age sales), how to recognise drunkenness and 
the duty not to serve drunk persons. Refresher training shall be carried out at 
least every six months. 

  
 Training records shall be kept on the premises (or otherwise be accessible on 

the premises) for a minimum of 12 months and made immediately available to 
police, trading standards or licensing authority staff upon reasonable request.  

 
11 On leaving patrons will be chaperoned to their vehicles to minimise 

disruption and noise outside. 

Page 61



 
 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing 
authority 

 
 
 

 
1 There should be a second interior door installed at the front entrance. 
                     

  
In reference to the outside area there shall be the following additional conditions  

 
  
2 The retractable roof will be completely shut/closed by 2100hrs each day. 

 
3 There shall be no use of the outside space on Sunday to Thursday after 

2230hrs and on Friday and Saturday after 0000hrs except for the purpose 
of smoking. 

 
4 The area is to be staffed when it is being used. 

 
5 There shall be no licensable recorded music after 2230hrs each day. 

 
6 The passageway will be staffed at times of use. 

 
7 Noise limiters shall be installed in the outside space in discussion and 

agreement of the Licensing Department of the Council. 
 

 8 Signage to be displayed requesting patrons to use courtesy and respect to 
neighbours. 

Page 62



 
 

 

Annex 4 – Plans 

 
This licence is issued subject to the following attached plan dated 13.07.18 (amended & 
submitted 10SEP20) marked Joy Fook, Ongar Road, Essex CM15 9SS  

 

Page 63



 
 

 

 
 

Premises Licence Summary 
 

Premises Licence Number 
 
Application Number 
 
Date of Issue 

PRM_0569 
 
20/00114/LAMIN 
 

1 October 2020 

 
Part 1 – Premises Details 

 
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post Town, Post Code 
 

Dusk 
Ongar Road 
Pilgrims Hatch 
Essex CM15 9SS 
 
Telephone number 

01277 424987 
  

 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence  
 

Performance of Dance 
Exhibition of a film 
Performance of Live music 
Playing of Recorded music 
Other Entertainment falling within Act 
Provision of Late Night Refreshments 
 

 
Times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities  
 

Performance of Dance 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Page 64



 
 

 

 
Exhibition of a film 

  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00  
 

Performance of Live music 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 00:00 
Saturday 16:00  - 00:00 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Playing of Recorded music 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 01:30 
Saturday 16:00  - 01:30 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Other Entertainment falling within Act 
  
Monday 16:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 16:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 16:00  - 00:00 
Friday 16:00  - 01:30 
Saturday 16:00  - 01:30 
Sunday 13:00  - 00:00  
 

Provision of Late Night Refreshments 
  
Monday 23:00  - 00:00 
Tuesday 23:00  - 00:00 
Wednesday 23:00  - 00:00 
Thursday 23:00  - 00:00 
Friday 23:00  - 01:30 
Saturday 23:00  - 01:30 
Sunday 23:00  - 00:00  
 
 

 

Page 65



 
 

 

 
The opening hours of the premises 

 
           Monday                    16:00  - 00:00 
           Tuesday                    16:00  - 00:00 
           Wednesday                    16:00  - 00:00 
           Thursday                    16:00  - 00:00 
           Friday                    16:00  - 02:00 
           Saturday                    16:00  - 02:00 
           Sunday                    13:00  - 00:00 
 

 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies 
 

Not Applicable 
 

 

Page 66



 
 

 

 
Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence 

 

Sisu Enterprises Limited 
County Service Station 
Essex Gardens 
Hornchurch 
RM11 3EH 
 
Email Address info@duskbrentwood.co.uk 
 
 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 

 
Company Number 11278657  
 
 

 
Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
 
 

Not Applicable 
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 

Not Applicable 
 

 
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 10001830919th August 2019Date :

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH 
CM15 9SS
Drawing No. :

Scale at A4 : 1:1500

Drawn by : OSJ

Service : ICT

Brentwood Borough Council

Town Hall, Ingrave Road

Brentwood, CM15 8AY

Tel.: (01277) 312500

Philip Ruck

Chief Executive

Page 68



© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 10001830919th August 2019Date :

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH 
CM15 9SS
Drawing No. :

Scale at A4 : 1:3000

Drawn by : OSJ

Service : ICT

Brentwood Borough Council

Town Hall, Ingrave Road

Brentwood, CM15 8AY

Tel.: (01277) 312500

Philip Ruck

Chief Executive

Page 69



D
U

SK
 

 

Page 70



D
U

SK
 

 

Page 71



 

Page 72



 

Page 73



 

Page 74



 

 

 

 

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 
REPRESENTATION 

Responsible Authorities 

 

Mr. David Carter – Environmental Health Manager 

 

Page 75

Appendix D



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 

 

APPENDIX 4 
REPRESENTATIONS - Other Persons 

 

Brian & Carolyn Billington 

Sue Norris 

Esther Reid 

Mr & Mrs – Local Residents 

Richard Austin 

Michael & Jemma Ballard 

Michael & Shirley Ballard 

Megan & Mohamed Bashir 

Councillor Vicky Davies 

Leigh & Jessica Davies 

Helen Kakoullis 

Sue West 

Hazel Lock 

Ms – Local Resident 

Page 81

Appendix E



 

 

 

 

DUSK, ONGAR ROAD, PILGRIMS HATCH CM15 9SS 

 

 

APPENDIX 4 
REPRESENTATIONS 

Other Persons 

 

Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Members Interests 
 
Members of the Council must declare any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests and the 
nature of the interest at the beginning of an agenda item and that, on declaring a 
pecuniary interest, they are required to leave the Chamber. 
 

 What are pecuniary interests? 
 

A person’s pecuniary interests are their business interests (for example their 
employment trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which they are 
associated) and wider financial interests they might have (for example trust 
funds, investments, and asset including land and property). 
 

 Do I have any disclosable pecuniary interests? 
 

You have a disclosable pecuniary interest if you, your spouse or civil partner, or a 
person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest set out in the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct.   
 

 What does having a disclosable pecuniary interest stop me doing? 
 

If you are present at a meeting of your council or authority, of its executive or any 
committee of the executive, or any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or 
joint sub-committee of your authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest relating to any business that is or will be considered at the meeting, you 
must not : 
 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, of if you 
become aware of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting 
participate further in any discussion of the business or,  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 
 
These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 
 
 

 Other Pecuniary Interests 
 

Other Pecuniary Interests are also set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct and 
apply only to you as a Member. 
 
If you have an Other Pecuniary Interest in an item of business on the agenda 
then you must disclose that interest and withdraw from the room while that 
business is being considered  
 
 

Page 125



 

 Non-Pecuniary Interests  
 
Non –pecuniary interests are set out in the Council's Code of Conduct and apply  
to you as a Member and also to relevant persons where the decision might 
reasonably be regarded as affecting their wellbeing. 
 
A ‘relevant person’ is your spouse or civil partner, or a person you are living with 
as a spouse or civil partner 
 
If you have a non-pecuniary interest in any business of the Authority and you are 
present at a meeting of the Authority at which the business is considered, you 
must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest whether or 
not such interest is registered on your Register of Interests or for which you have 
made a pending notification.  

 

Page 126



Licensing Sub-Committees 
 
To hear and determine applications that do not sit within the scope of delegation to 
officers, usually where representations have been received either by a third party 
against grant of a license, or from the applicant against intended refusal or revocation of 
a license/registration. 
 
The Planning and Licensing Committee has delegated all functions other than relevant 
policies and fees setting to officers, with the exception of those other matters as 
indicated below, which are heard by licensing sub-committee unless otherwise 
indicated: 
 
Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 
 

(a) Determination of any application type where a representation has been 
received in accordance with the legislation. 

 
(b) Determination of applications for review or expedited review. 

 
Hackney Carriage vehicles and drivers (including enforcement of ranks) and 
Private Hire vehicles, drivers and operators, with the exception of: 
 

(a) Suspension or revocation of drivers’ licenses (save for initial suspension 
under provision of Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
S61 (2B) if it appears that the interests of public safety require the 
suspension to have immediate effect). 

 
(b) Where representation has been submitted by the applicant/license holder 

against refusal of any application. 
 

(c) Where representation has been received from an applicant to vary a 
licensing or pre-licensing condition. 

  
Scrap Metal Dealing 
 

(a) Determination of applications where representations have been received 
against refusal in accordance with legislative requirements; and 

 
(b) Consideration of revocation of a license where representations have been 

received in accordance with legislative requirements  
 

Street Collections and House to House Collections 
 

(a) Appeals against refusal to grant or renew a license. 
 
 

Page 127



Licensing of sex establishments  
 

(a) Determination of all applications, revocations and appeals. 
 
Street Trading 
 

(a) Determination of applications where representation(s) has been received. 
 
(b) Determination of applications that fall outside of current policy. 
 
(c) Determination of matters relating to revocation of a license. 

 
Acupuncture, Tattooing, Skin and Ear Piercing and Electrolysis 
 

(a) Appeals against refusal to grant or renew a registration. 
 
(b) Revocation of a registration. 

 
Animal Welfare and Security, except for the following: 
 

(a) Appeals against refusal to grant or renew a license. 
 
(b) Revocation of a license. 

 
Exercise of Powers under Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960, 

except for: 
 

(a) Refusal and revocation of licenses, (other than urgent refusals which are 
delegated to officers) 

 
Mobile Homes 
 

(a) Appeals against revocation of a license and/or conditions attached to the 
grant of a license. 

 

Page 128


	Agenda
	3 Application to Vary the Premises Licence - Dusk, Ongar Road, Pilgrims Hatch, Brentwood. CM15 9SS
	Appendix 1
	APPENDIX 1 - APPLICATION FORM - DUSK.pdf (p.1)
	DUSK appln to vary PL 03JUL20 amended 16JUL20.pdf (p.2-21)
	DUSK appln to vary PL 03JUL20 supporting statement (ISLAM) redact 09JUL20.pdf (p.22-24)

	Appendix 1A
	APPENDIX 1A - APPLICATION (SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT) - DUSK.pdf (p.1)
	DUSK - LSCH Redacted Further Statement of Mr Shakil Islam.pdf (p.2-3)
	DUSK - NOISE IMPACT ASSESSMENT Sound Report.NIA (VENTA ACOUSTICS) 04SEP20.pdf (p.4-19)
	DUSK LSCH - Attendance form and noise assessment Email from Agent Kaizad Cassady.pdf (p.20)

	APPENDIX 2 - DUSK - PL 01OCT20 OS Maps & Images Full Appendix
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	 

